

MINUTES OF A CABINET MEETING Council Chamber - Town Hall Wednesday, 7 May 2025

(7.00 - 8.15 pm)

Present:

Councillor Ray Morgon (Leader of the Council), Chairman

	Cabinet Member responsibility:
Councillor Gillian Ford (Vice-Chair)	Lead Member for Adults & Wellbeing
Councillor Oscar Ford	Lead Member for Children & Young People
Councillor Paul McGeary	Lead Member for Housing & Property
Councillor Paul Middleton	Lead Member for Digital, Transformation & Customer Services
Councillor Barry Mugglestone	Lead Member for Environment
Councillor Natasha Summers	Lead Member for Housing Need & Climate Change
Councillor Graham Williamson	Lead Member for Regeneration

In attendance: Councillor David Taylor (substituting for Councillor Michael White); Councillor Brian Eagling (substituting for Councillor Martin Goode); Councillor Darren Wise.

79 **ANNOUNCEMENTS**

On behalf of the Chair, there was an announcement about the arrangements in case of fire or other events that might require the meeting room or building's evacuation.

80 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies received from Councillor Chris Wilkins.

81 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

82 **MINUTES**

The minutes of the meetings held on 9th April 2025, were agreed as a correct record and the Chair signed them.

83 CHILDREN IN CARE SUFFICIENCY STRATEGY

Report Title: Children in Care Sufficiency Strategy

Presented by: Councillor Oscar Ford, Cabinet Member for Children & Young People

Summary:

The Children in Care Sufficiency Strategy describes how the London Borough of Havering will continue to meet its Sufficiency Duty which is a statutory requirement set out in Section 22G of the Children's Act 1989.

The Council is required to provide the children in care with accommodation that

- (a) Is within the authority's area; and
- (b) Meets the needs of those children.

The Strategy describes the population of children in care, their needs and the type of care that they require. It sets out the direction of travel to increase the number of children in care living within the borough, nearer their families, friends and critical agencies, such as schools, GPs and specialist health providers.

Cabinet:

Approved the Childcare Sufficiency Strategy 2025-2028 as set out at Appendix 1.

84 JOINING PSEUDO-DYNAMIC PURCHASING SYSTEM FOR CHILDREN'S CARE PLACEMENTS

Report Title: Joining London Borough of Newham Pseudo-Dynamic Purchasing System for Children's Care Placements

Presented by: Councillor Oscar Ford, Lead Member for Children's Services

Summary:

The decision request is to allow Havering to access Newham Borough Council's Pseudo Dynamic Purchasing System (PDPS) for Children's Care Placements enabling the Council to meet its Statutory Sufficiency Duty requirement set out in Section 22G of the Children's Act 1989.

The Council is required to provide our children in care with accommodation that

- (a) Is within the authority's area; and
- (b) Meets the needs of those children.

Having access to the PDPS will provide the All-Age Brokerage Team (placements) with high access to quality care from providers who have been approved through a competitive tendering process.

The PDPS also enables the Council to manage its budgets better through contractual clauses linked to fee negotiations, uplifts and notice periods.

Cabinet:

Approved joining Newham's Pseudo Dynamic Purchasing System for Children's Care Placements.

85 HAVERING CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN 2024-27 ANNUAL REPORT

Report: Havering Climate Change Action Plan (HCCAP) 2024-25
Annual Report

Presented by: Councillor Natasha Summers: Cabinet Member for Climate Change

Summary:

This report presented a progress update on the Havering Climate Change Action Plan (HCCAP) for 2024-25. It builds on the actions first introduced in November 2021, and which established a target of becoming carbon neutral by 2040 or sooner. Full Council went on to overwhelmingly declare a Climate Emergency on 21 March 2023. The HCCAP provides a framework for the Council's actions to deliver on its target of becoming carbon neutral by 2040 or sooner.

The report detailed the work we have undertaken and the progress made over the past financial year in addressing the climate emergency. It celebrates key projects, actions achieved, and the partners we have collaborated with. Notably, 30% of the actions in the HCCAP were completed in 2024-25. A further 48% of in-year actions are on track. This is an evolving framework, and the Council will continue to update the approach over time; as targets change, as new data becomes available and following major Government decarbonisation strategies. There are two elements to the monitoring framework: one relates to the Council's emissions from the operation of its services which are broadly controllable, subject to financial constraints and Government support. The other aspect

of the data collection relates to Borough emissions where the Council has an influencing and/or leadership role.

The latest published figures show that in 2022, Havering's greenhouse gas emissions were the lowest since 2005. However, the borough still had the 14th highest emissions in London, equating to the 7th highest per capita. Transport (46%) and domestic energy use (37%) were the biggest contributors to emissions.

Greenhouse gas emissions for the Council's operations have also decreased between the last two financial years. The biggest reductions have come from improvements and upgrades to the Council fleet.

Cabinet:

- 1. Noted the progress that Havering has made in tackling the climate emergency over the last financial year as outlined in Appendix 1 (Progress on 2024/25 actions to date).
- 2. Noted the overall emissions for Havering Council outlined in this report.

86 REPORT OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Overview & Scrutiny Board comments to Cabinet

Using its Constitutional powers under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, the Overview and Scrutiny Board has made a number of recommendations to Cabinet.

Cabinet is recommended to respond to these.

Havering Volunteer Centre (HVC)

Cabinet agreed to consider the recommendations listed during upcoming strategic meetings.

- 1. That the HVC be given a longer term lease on their current location.
- 2. The Council should not ask the HVC to leave their current premises for a period of at least 18 months.
- 3. Whilst noting the remedial action taken by senior officers, the Board condemns as unacceptable the previous poor treatment and language used by some Council officers when communicating with HVC staff.
- 4. Further detail should be given on the specific level of the rent increase to be applied. This should be at a lower level than current market rents.
- 5. Details of the proposed alternative site for the HVC that has been identified by the Council, including levels of associated costs, should be supplied to the HVC as a matter of urgency. The Board finds it unacceptable that the HVC should have been given four weeks' notice to leave without a costed alternative being provided. The Board notes that this position has now been addressed.

- 6. The possibility of a charitable donation of premises to HVC should be explored.
- 7. Any underspend in the community engagement budget should be passed to the HVC.
- 8. Cabinet should make clear its vision for volunteering/the voluntary sector in Havering and where the HVC sits within this.
- The Council should make proactive efforts to obtain increased funding and support for the voluntary sector from local businesses and partner organisations. Page 4
- 10. Cabinet should commit to continue current funding (as a minimum) for the HVC.
- 11. Information should be provided as to whether any other tenancies of voluntary organisations are at risk due to the position with the HVC premises.
- 12. If Council funding arrangements allow, certainty of funding for the HVC should be given for a period of at least three years.
- 13. The Council should explore the introduction of a neighbourhood plan for Romford as this would allow a Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy to fund the HVC.
- 14. Cabinet is asked to support the view of the Board that the HVC provides good value for money.

Responses;

The Overview and Scrutiny Board reviewed the council's HVC funding and made recommendations, which were discussed by the cabinet. The cabinet agreed with most recommendations but had reservations about requiring cabinet members to attend every meeting and providing questions in advance. They emphasised the need for practicality and clarity in roles, noting that officers handle operational details while cabinet members focus on policy. The cabinet committed to considering all recommendations thoroughly and reporting back by July.

They also discussed the importance of timely report submissions and the need for effective training to differentiate between officer and cabinet member responsibilities.

Agreed to

- Conduct a deep dive into the funding and role of the HVC during upcoming strategy meetings.
- Provide a formal response to the HVC on the council's decision within the next 4 weeks
- Report back to the public on which scrutiny recommendations have been accepted or rejected, by July cabinet meeting.
- Work with the scrutiny chairs to develop a protocol for cabinet member attendance and provision of questions in advance.
- Provide training to clarify the differentiation between officer and member responsibilities in the scrutiny process.

• Scrutiny Process and Related Issues

Cabinet agreed to recommendations 2, 3, 4, 6 & 7

- The relevant Cabinet Member should be required to attend each meeting of the Board or Sub-Committees where there is an item relevant to their portfolios. Not agreed
- 2. All Cabinet responses to scrutiny recommendations or comments should be included as an agenda item at the next scrutiny meeting. **Agreed**
- 3. Comments and recommendations to Cabinet should be presented at the Cabinet meeting by the Chairman and Vice-Chair of the Board or relevant Sub-Committee. **Agreed**
- 4. Cabinet responses to scrutiny comments on called-in decisions should be circulated to all members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board as well as other Members supporting the call-in. **Agreed**
- 5. Cabinet supports the Board's request for scrutiny reports to be received two weeks ahead of publication as this will facilitate earlier pre-meets and general consideration of the material. **Not agreed**
- 6. That Cabinet commends the Overview and Scrutiny Board reviewing the work it undertook over the past year, and its ongoing efforts to make the scrutiny process as effective as possible for residents. **Agreed**
- 7. That a protocol be developed for working practices between Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Board including, but not limited to, the issues outlined in the recommendations above. **Agreed**

Responses:

The cabinet is content with five of the seven recommendations around the scrutiny process but has reservations about requiring cabinet members to attend each meeting.

The cabinet suggests a formal invitation with clarification of the reason for attendance and advance questions from the committee.

The cabinet discusses the practicality of providing reports two weeks ahead of publication and the challenges of meeting tight time scales.

The cabinet agrees to make every effort to provide reports in a timely manner but cannot commit to it being possible every time.

Final summary;

The Chair concluded the discussion, agreeing to take forward for discussion the recommendations for HVC and scrutiny process.

The cabinet emphasised the importance of effective scrutiny and the need for practical arrangements to support it.

The cabinet agreed to work with the scrutiny committee and other stakeholders to ensure a balanced and effective scrutiny process.

Chairman
online idations and continue working on the deep dive work.
ommendations and continue working on the deep dive work.

The meeting concluded with a commitment to report back on the